Beckman et al v. Arigona Canning Company, LLC et al Dqc. 36

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OFCALIFORNIA
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10 || WILLIAM BECKMAN and LIND A
GANDARA, individuals, on bedlf of
11 ||themselves, and all persons similarly| CASE NO.3:16-cv-02792JAH-BLM
situated,
12 Plaintiffs, ORDER GRANTING IN PART AND
13 DENYING _IN PART DEFENDANT'S
VS. MOTION TO DISMISS
14 PLAINTIFF S' SECOND AMENDED

ARIZONA CANNING COMPANY, |COMPLAINT [DOC. NO. 30|
LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company; and DOES 1 to 10 inclusjv

i
o o,

Defendant

[
~l

INTRODUCTION

i
© o

This matter comes before he Cout on Defendant ArizonaCanning

N
(@]

CompanyLLC’s (“ACC” or “Defendant”) motion to dismiss Plaintiffs Willigm

N
[

Beckman and Linda Gandara’s (“Plaintiffs) second amended complaint (“SAC”")

N
N

Doc. Na 30. Defendant moves to dismiss pursuantFederal Ruls of Civil
Procedure Fed. R. @v. P.”) 8, 9(b), 12(b)(1) and12(b)(6) The motion has beg¢n

fully briefed. Along with its motion to dismiss, Defendant filed a request for

N N DN
o D W

judicial notice. Doc. No0.30-2. Having considered thparties’ submissios, oral

N
(@))

argurment and for the reasons detth below, Defendant’srequest for judicig
notice is GRANTED in part and DENIED in paahd the motion to dismiss

GRANTED in part andDENIED in part
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BACKGROUND
A. Factual Background

Plaintiffs purchasedeveralcans in vaous sizes oDefendant’'sSun Vista

cannedointo beansSAC at 3 {7.Sun Vista Beans are sold15 oz., 29 oz., 40 oz.

and 108 oz. cans, as well as in an 8 pack of 15 oz. ichret. 6.Each can of Su
Vista beans, regardless of silists water aghe first ingredientithin thenutrition

facts panelindicaesa serving size of onkalf cup(4 0z) includes the languag

“Heat and Serve and displag an image ok bowvl of whole plump beanas see
below. SAC at 8 118.

A p '
ARLZONA WM Mioene, | Lasek's | La Castel

Black Beans No Salt Pinto Beans No Salt Pinto Beans Pinto Beans with

i ———————————
However, vwhole plump beansare not what theconsumersees when

emptyng the can’s contentslnlike the image advertisedn the principal displa
pane] consumers receive mostly water, with a portidrbeansfully submergeq
and undetectable at first sigitAC at 12  3@&8.
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Plaintiffs allege that they relied on, and were misledtbyg, labeling an

advertising displayed otle products packaging, specifically (1) the image on

label portraying a bowl full of “plump and hardy pinto beanghwa glimmer of

shine” am negigible water,(2) the nutrition facts panel, including the net wei
sewing size, and number of servings per container, and (3) the size and fill
opaque container. Plaintiffs claim that the Sun Visman labels & fdse anc
misleading, tke informaion on tle label is deceptive, and the use of water
filler is concealed from consumers in violation of California’s Unfair Compet
Law (“UCL”), Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq., False Advertising
(“FAL"), Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cod § 1500 & seq.,and California Consumer Led
Remedies Act (“CLRA”), Cal. CivCode 8§ 1750 et seq.

B. Procedural Background

Plaintiffs filed their initial complaint onOctober 11, 2016 in the Super
Court of California, CountyfoSan Diego.Doc. No.1-2. Defendant filed atimely
notice of removahnd moved to dismiss Plaintiff's initial complaifor failure to
state a claim and failure tdead fraudbased claims witlsufficient particularity,
Doc. Nos 1, 3. The Court grantedefendant’'s motionwith leaveto amend
finding that Plaintiffs had not met tieightenedgleading standard of Rule 9(4
SeeDoc. Na 18 Beckman v. Arizona Camg Co., LLC,No. 16CV02792]JAH-
BLM, 2017 WL 4227043 (S.D. Cal. Sept. 21, 2017). Pldmfifed an amende
complant identfying which variety of bean Plaintiffs purchas&ke DocNo. 19.
Defendant again moved to dismiss, adding two additignounds (1) lack of
standing pursant toRule 12(b)(1)and failure to state a plausible claint felief.
Fed. R. CivP. 8 12(b)1). In light of Defendant’s compliance withd Federa
Drug Administration’s (“FDA”) regulation labeling the ingredients in order
predominancethe Court found the pleadings insufficianith regards to wh
and/or hev the alleged misconduct was meigding or deceptivelrhe Court futher

ruled that Plaintiffs did not plead factsdicating compliance withCal. Civ. Codes
-3-
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1782(a) requiringa prefiling notice, andtherefore were not entitled damage
under the CLRA.Doc. Na 27. The Court gantedDefendant’s motion to dismi
the First Amended Complaint (“FAC"without prejudice Plaintiffs timely filed
the SAC Doc. No.29.

Now before the Court is Defendant’s requestjfmlicial notice andnotion
to dismiss Plaitiffs’” SAC pursuat to Rules8, 9(b),12(b)(1) and 12(b)(pfor: (1)
failure to state a plausible claim for relief, (2) failure to plead uéard claims
with sufficient particularity; (3) lack of standing under claspecific sate law
requiremets; and(4) falure to state a eim upon which relief can be grant
Doc. Nb. 30.

L EGAL STANDARD
A. Rule 8

To state a claim for relief, a pleading must contain “a short and
statement of the grounds fdhe court’s jurisdiction” and “a short and pls
statenent of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to reliefd.RCiv.P.
8(a)Y1) & (2).“T o survive a motion to dismisacomplaintmust contain sufficier
factual matter, accepted as true, $tate a claim to relief that is plausilde its
face! ” Ashcoft v. Igbal 556 U.S. 662, 6782009) (citing Bell Atl. Corp. v
Twombly 550 U.S. 544, B0 (2007). In order tosatisfy“Rule 8(a)(2)s thresholg
requirement that théplain statementpossess enough heft tesho[w] that thg
pleader is entitletb relief,™ plaintiff must pleal allegations thasuggestefendnt

Is likely liable — allegations “merely consisterit with liability are insifficient.

Twombly 550 U.S.at 545. The plausibility standardrequiresmore tlan a mere

possibility thatdefendantaded unlawfully — butless than a probabilitygbal, 556
U.S.at 678 (citing Twomby, 550 U.S. at556). A claim is facially plausible wén
a reasonable inferencé lability can be drawn from th&actualallegationsid. A

complaint that fails to meet this standard may be dismissed pursu&thilgo

12(b)(6) Id.at 679.
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B. Rule 9(b)
In addition, under Ninth Circuit case law, Rule 9(b) imposeleightened

particularized pleading requirement on complaints alleging fr&ed.R.Civ.P,

9(b). First, aplantiff’ s claims must Stae precisy the time, place, and nature
the misleading statements, misrepresentations, and specific acts of fikaplah
v. Rose 49 F.3d 1363, 1370 (9th Cir. 1994); see alsssv. CibaGeigy Corp,
U.S.A., 317 F.3d 10971106 (9h Cir. 2003)(a plantiff must sé forth the “who
what, when, where and how” of the alleged misconduct). Second, Rul
requires that the complaint “set forth an explanation as to why the staten

omission complainedf was false or misleadg.” Yourish v. CalifornisAmplifier,

191F.3d 983, 993 (9th Cir. 199@uotingIn re GlenFed Sec. Litig42 F.3d 1541

1548(9th Cir.1994) én bang).
C. Rule 12(b)(1)

Pursuant to Rule 12(b)(1), a party may move to disamsactionfor “lack
of jurisdiction over the subject riar.” Fed. R. Civ. P12((1). If jurisdiction is
lacking, thedismissing court is deprived of any power to adjudicate the mer,
the caseHampton v. Pac. Inv. Mgmt. Co. LL869 F.3d 844, 84@th Cir. 2017
(citing Wages v. R.S, 915 F.2d 12301234 (9th Cir. 1990). The buden of
establishing jurisdiction résupon the party asserting iKokkonen v. Guardia
Life Ins. Co. of Am511 U.S. 375, 377 (1994).

“A Rule 12(b)(1) jurisdictionahttack may be facial or factudlSafe Air for
Everyone vMeyer, 373 F.3d 1035, 103®th Cir. 2004) (citingWhite v. Leg227
F.3d 1214, 1242 (9th Cir. 2000)). A facial attack challenges the allegatig
insufficient ontheir face to invoke federal jgdiction. Id. In reviewing a facig
attack on the compiat, a district court must cxept the allegations in t
complaint as true and determine whether subjeuatter jurisdiction has bes
establishedBerkovitz v. United State486 U.S. 531, 54(1988)
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D. Rule 12(b)(6)
Rule 12(b)(6)tests the sufficiency ahe complaint.Fed.R.Civ.P12(b)(6);
Navarro v. Block250 F3d 729, 732 (9th Cir. 2001 Dismissal is warranted undg

12(b)(6) where the complaint lacks a cognizable legal theBgbertson vDean

Witter Reynolds, Inc749 F.21 530, 534 (9th Cir. 181); seeNeitzke v. Williams

490 U.S. 319, 326 (1989) (“Rule)(6) authorizes a couto dismiss a claim g
the basis of a dispositive issue of law.”). Alternatively, a complaint mg
dismis®d where it presents a cognizablgaktheory yet fails to plead essenti
facts under that theoryRobertson749 F.2dat 334. While a plaintiff need not giv
“detailed factual allegations,” he must plead sufficiawts that, if true, “raise
right to relief above the speculative levelTwombly 550 U.S.at 545. The Cour
must determire whether the complaintalleges enough facts &tate a claim fq
relief. Fed.R.Civ.P.12(b)(6); Igbal, 556 U.S.at 663 Twombly 550 U.S.at 570.
For purposes of rulingpn a Rule 12(b)(6) motion, a abu‘accept[s] factug
allegationsin the complaint as true and construe[s] the pleadings in the light
favorable to the nonmoving partyManzarek v. St. Paul Fer& Marine Irs. Ca,
519 F.3d 1025, 1031 (9th Cir. 2008Mere conclusions,” however, “arnd
entitled to the assoption of truth. While legal conclusions can provide
complaint's framework, they must be supported by factual allegatigpsl, 556
U.S. at 664

If a court determines that a complaint fails to state a claingdbhe shoud
grant leaveo amend urdss 1 deermires that the pleading could not possibly
cured by the allegation of other facackson v. Carey353 F.3d 750, 758 (9
Cir. 2003).The court will only dismiss if “it appears bepd doubtthat the phintiff

canprove no set of facts” that wadi ertitle plaintiff to relief. Osborn v. Unite

States 918 F.2d 724729n. 6(8th Cir.1990)quotingScheuer v. Rhode416 U.S|

232 236(1974))
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DiscussIiON

A. Requests for Judcial Notice

The court may caide facts aleged in the complaint, damerts attache(
to the complaint, documentslied upon but not attached to the complauhien
authenticity is notontestedand matters of which the court takes judicial not
Lee v. City of Le Angeles250 F.3d 68, 688-89 (9th Cir. 200). “The defendan
may offer sich a document, and the distrcourt may treat such a documen
part of the complaint, and thus may assume that its contents are true for p
of a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6lnhited States vRitchig 432 F.3¢
903, 908(9th Cir. 2003) Pursuant to Federal Rule B¥idence (Fed. R. Evid.)
201, he court may judicially notice a fact that is not subject &soaable dispu
because it(1) is generally known withithe trial courts territorial jurisdiction; of
(2) canbe acarately and radily determined from soursevhose accuracy cani
reasonably be questied. The party requesting notice carries the demr of
showingthat the fact is a matter of common knowledge or that theragcof the
source cannot be reasonabuestoned. Fed. R. Evid201(b). If a relevant fact i
reasonably caested,the evidenceshould bepresentedefore the trier of fact to
make the determination

ACC moves for judicial notice of three items includin@) a ®arch
conducted through 6hUSDA Branded Food Products Database identifying
different bean productssiting “water” as the first ingredient ineh canned pirno
beans; (2) an article entitled Reading Food Labels from the U.S. Departn
Health & Hunman Services, National Ingite on Aging; and (3) an article entit
Reading the Ingadient Label: Whatio Look For from WebMD archives.

1.USDA Brandkd Foad Products DatabaseProfiles

The USDADbrancd food products databasBHPD) is an online databay

hoged by the United StateDepartment of AgricultureNational Agricultura

1 The BFPDis publicly available ahttpsi/ndb.nal.usda.gowmfib.
-7-
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Library and & aresult of a publigrivate partnership made up offood industry
organizations collegiate and internatiah institutes,and research center&lS
Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Resear Service, Nutrient Data
Laboratory, USDA Branded Food ProductsoBumentation at 4August 2018
Internet: https://ndb.nal.usda.gov/ndb/docs/BFPDB_Doc.pdihe infomation

within the BFPD including descriptions, nutrient dataserving size, and
ingrediens for each produds piovided byfood industry organizations itntaily .
Id. While the USDA assists with reformatting and standardizing the datathénei
verifies nor confirns theaccuacy. Id.

Although the accuracy of the information prosttdby the BFPD is nat
challenged by either party, Plaintiff argudsatthe 15profilesof which Defendant

requeststhe Court to take notice is an incomplete representatidhe databas

W

which includes approximately 361 bean productséAt most, the sarch results

presented byDefendantindicate that at least 15 bean gwots list water as a

primary ingredient This datafalls short of establishing, beyond dispute, [any

standard within the industryWwhat may be considestecomman practicewithin the
food industry is disputel by the paties. Thereforeevidence supporting ter
positionis not subject tqudicial notice.SeeUnited States v. Ritchi842 F.3d 903,
908-09 (9thCir.2003)Courts maytakejudicial notice of adjudicative facts that are
not subject to reasonable plige). The Court DENIES Defendant’'s requesor
judicial notice of theBFPDsearch esults?

2 Plaintiffs suggesthat the Court matake judcial notice of the fact that theformation was inle public realm
However,the USDA Branded Food Products Dhése officially launhed on 16 September 20B2eU.S. Dept. of
Agriculture, USDA Announcellew Open Data Partnershipr Public Health Release No. 0116 Sept. 16, 2016.
The Cout does not have sufficient fecby which to deermine whethedata contained with the BFPDwas
available in the public realm at ttiene of Plaintiffs’ purchase ahtherefore alg declinesto take judicial noticen
that basis.

-8-
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2. Internd Article: U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Natiot
Instituteon Aging

ACC requeststhe Court take judicial noticeof a pageertitled “Reading

Foad Label$ from theNational Ingitute on Aging - a subsection of the Nation

Institutes of Health within the U.S. Department of Hedl & Human Services

websitehttps://www.nia.nih.gov/hedifreadingfood-labelsThe National hsftutes

of Health (NIH)is the nation’s medical research agerggfendant asks that th

Courtreview tre webpagédor its factualcorntent andassume itscontentsare true

for purposes oits motion to dismissACC contends such notice is prop&hen the

welsite is that of a governmentigency. Plaintiff concedesbut requestshe Cout

take judicial noticeonly of the fact thathe nformaion was in the public rém at

the time.
Judicial noticeof informationavailabke orline is appropriate ifit was male
publicly avalable by [a] government enfiy]...and neither party disputes f{

authenticity of the web sites or the accuracy ofitii@mation displayedherein.”
DanielsHall v. Natl Educ. As%, 629 F.3d 992, 9989 (9th Cir. 2010)The only
contention raised by Plaitiff is whether consumers have knowledge tio¢
information containedherein However,neither theaccuracyof the information
nor theauthenticiy of the welsiteare in disputeAccordingly, the Court GRANT$
Defendants requestand takes judical notice ofthe webpag entitled “Reading
Food Labels SeeCounty of Santa Clara v. Astra USAc., 401F.Supp.2d 1023
1024 (N.D.Cal.2005]taking judicial notte of infomation posted on a Dagmen{
of Health and Human Services web xite
3. Interret Article: WebMD

Defendantalso submts an online article fromthe archives of WeldMD

entitled “Readng the Irgredent Lakel: Wha to Look For” The informaion

contained in the article was not pubksl by a government entity, but inst

providedby a private feelance writerDespite the utility of the WebMD platfort
-0-

3:16cv-02792JAH-BLM

nal

Al

e

he

A\ 4 JJ

L4

D
QO

m,



https://www.nia.nih.gov/health/reading-food-labels

© 00 N O o A W DN B

N NN RN N NDNNNRRRR R R R R B
W ~N O O N W N kB O © 0o ~N O 00 h 0 N =B O

it cannot be said that theformation containedwithin thearticlewasderived fom

a “source[] whose accurg cannot reasonablyebquestiond.” Accordingly, the

Court takes udicial notice ony of the fact thatthe internet articlds publicly
available- notthe truth of the matters assertbadrein

B. California’s UCL, FAL and CLRA

Plaintiffs bring causes of actiorunder the UCL, FAL and CLRA for
manufacturing ad producingSun Vistapinto beaswith allegedly misleadingnd
deceptive packaging Californias UCL prohibits “unfair competitiori which
includesany “unlawful, unfair or fraudulent buness act or practicand unfair
deceptive, untrue or misleadingvadising” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cod& 17200 see
also Lozano v. AT & T Wireless Servs., .In804 F.3d 718, 731 (9thitC 2007)

(explainng thatthe statutds violated where a defendastact or practice is (1

unlawful, (2) unfair, (3) fraudulent, or (4) violation of section 17500 FAL")).
Each “prong” of tie UCL provides a separate and distinct theory of liabilty.
Plaintiffs assertclaims underall three prongsof the UCL Unde the
unlawful prong Plairtiff s claim Defendants conduct violateatertain provisions o
the Federal FogdDrug and Cosmetic Act'EDCA”) 2 andthe corresponding st3
laws which incorpaate the requireents o the FDCA commonlyreferredto as
the Sherma Food, Drug and Cosmtic Laws* Plaintiffs assertACC’'s conductis
alsounfair under the UCL becauseviolates thepolicy of 15 U.S.C. § 145by
preventing consumers from being ableotsiain accuratenformation to facilitatg
value comparisond.ast, Plaintiffs #ege thatthe practice of falsly advertising

misrepreerting, and misbranahg Sun Vista Beansonstitutesfraud becaus

3 Specificaly, Plainiffs allegeviolations of: (1) 21 U.S.C. § 33H), which prohbits introduction iro interstate
commerce ofmisbranded food(2) 21 US.C. 8331(), prohibiting theadulteration omisbrandingy of any food and
(3) 15 U.S.C. 8452 making itunlawful to package or label ampnsumeicommodity which doe not conforma
the Fair Packagingnd Labeling Program set forth in U5S.C Chapter39.

4 Plaintiffs summarily list Cal. Health &Saf. Codesectims: §110390 prohibiting thedisseminabn of false
advertising); 8110395 (ohibitingthe manufacture osell of falsdy-advertised produs); §110398 ihakingit
unlawful to advertise a mistndedproduct); 810760 fnakingit unlawful tomanufactue or sell any misbrande
prodict); ard 8110765 fhaking it unlawful to misbrand any food). (SATL88(a)(e).)

-10-
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consumers aréikely to be and aredeceivedas to quality and quantity ohe
product they are purchasindgPlaintiffs allege that any stateme made ir
connection with the sale of a pradus advertising including statement®n the
products labe] and thereforethe same conduct which violates the frdedt
prong of the UCL aoviolates the FAL.

The FAL prohibits thedisseminationof any advertisementoncerningreal

or personal propty, “which is untrue or misleading@and which is knownpr

which by the exercise of reasonable care should be knowbge tantrue or

misleading” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cod& 17500.The California Supreme Coungs
recognizedhat

Any violation of the false advertising law. neaessarily violates”[the
fraudulentprong of] the UCL. Committee on Childrés Television, Inc. \
General Foods Corp35 Cal.3d 197, 21q1983) We have also recogniz
that these laws prohibit “not onladvertising which is false, but al
advertisingwhich [,] although true, is either actually misleading or wi
has a capacity, likelihood or tendency to deceive or certfus public.’
Leoni v. State Bar39 Cal.3d609, 626(1985) Thus, to state a claimnder
either the UCL or the false advertisiteyy, based on false advertising
promotional practices, “it is necessary only to show that ‘membletise

public are likey to be deceived. Committee on Childrés Television, Ing.

v. General Foods Corpsuprg 35 Cal.3d a1l accord Bank of theNes
v. Superior Court2 Cal.4th 1254, 126{L992)
Kasky v. Nike, la, 27 Cal. 4th 939, 9581(2003, as modifiedMay 22,2002).

The samestandard is applied foconduct allege to be deceptive o
misleadingunder the CLRAWilliams v. Gerber Prod. Cp552 F.3d 934, 938 (9t
Cir. 2008) The CLRA prohibits certain “unfair methods of competition andau
or deceptive acts gractices..intended to resulor which results in the saleof
goods..to any consumeét. Cal. Civ. Code§ 1770(a). Conduct is consided
deceptive or misleading if the conduct is “likely to deceive” a “reasol
consumer.’'Williams, 552 F.3dat 938, see alsdColgan v. Leatherman Tool Grod
Inc. 135 Cal.App.4th 663, 682006) Therefore when determining whether,

complaint should belismssal at the pleading stagelaims for violation of the
-11-
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FAL, CLRA, the fraudulent(andin thisinstancethe unlavful) prongof the UCL|
are analzed simultaneousl. SeeHadley v. Kellogg Sales Go243 F. Supp. 3
1074, 1089 (N.D. Cal. 2017xiting In re Sony Gaming Networks & Custor
Data Sec. Breach Litig 996 F.Supp.2d 942, 985 (S.D. Cal. 2014) (“Courts
analyzethese statutes together because they share similar attrigutés.Sum,
“any advertising schemenvolving falsg® unfair, misleding or decejve
advertising of food products equally violafglse unfair competition law, thelfe
advertising law, andhe Sherman Food, Drug and Cosmetic Jawwomm. O
Children's Television, Inas. Gen. Foods Corp35 Cal. 3d 197, 21(1983)

C. ACC’s Motions to Dismiss

First, Defendanmoves to dmiss Plaintiffs SAC ongrounds that it failshie
pleadirg requiranentsunder Rule 8 and 9(b)Fed. R. Civ. P8, 9(b). Defendan

also challenges Riintiffs’ standing to sue for products not purchaaad argues$

thatthe facts alleged are insufficient to state a claim for relief und@)(&. Fed.
R. Civ. R12(b)(1), 12(b)(6). The Courtaddresss eachn turn.

1. Rule 8:Plausibility of the Allegations

“Courts will dismiss false advertising and similariie when, costruing

d
ner

pften

=

—F

4

the factual allegations in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, the chatlenge

advertising tatements would not plausibly deceive a reasonable consuiBiee,
Buffalo Co. Ltd. v. Nestle Purina Petcare .Cblo. 4:15 CV 384 RWS, 26 WL
322768, at *3 (E.D. Mo. June 13, 20X6iting e.g.Red v. Kraft Foods, IncNo.
CV 101028GW AGRX, 2012 WL 5504011, at *3 (C.D. Cal. Oct. 25, 201
“Questions of fraud may be determined in the light of the effect advertise
would most probdly produce on ordinary mingisnot consideringthose who ar
“exceptionallyacute or sophistated buyes. Lavie v. Rocter & Gamble Cq
105 Cal. App. 4th 496, 502003)

5 An advertisemeinis consideredfals€’ under Californiaadw if it is misleading Cal. Healh & Safety Coeé §
110390

-12-
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To state a&use of action, it is necessanyly to show that the general pul

Is likely to be deceivedemphasis added}en. Foods Corp 35 Cal. 3d at 211.

(quoting Chern v. Bankof America 15Cal.3d 866, 876 (1975)

Likely to deceive” implies more than a merpossibility that thg
advertisement might conceivably be misunderdtoy some few consume
viewing it in an unreasonable manner. Rather, the phrase indibatethe
ad is such thattiis probable that a significant portion of the gen
consuming public or of targeted consumers, acting reasonably
circumstances;ould be misled

Lavie 105 Cal. Ap. 4th at 508 Plainiffs need not allege actual decept,

reliane or damagessen. Foods Corp 35 Cal. 3d at 21Howeverthe SAC must
contain fatual allegations tht alow the urt to drawa reasonable inferendieat
ACC's product label is likelyto misleadthe reasonable consumiato believng a
canof Sun VistaPinto beanss primarily filled with beans as opposed to wats
Based on an infonal surveyPlaintiffs allege that when consuraevere askedto
look at a can of Defendnts Sun Vista Beangach consumegxpresseda belief
that the can wagredominantlyfilled with beans. SAC 28 n.2.

ACC contendsthat Plaintiffs unreasonably looked to thmcture tg
determine the cag’ingredients, instead of the ingredielatsel Citing Williams v
Gerber Product @., Plaintiffs respondthat the reasnable consumeris not
expectd to look past the misleading information the dsplay paneko find the
truth listed in small print inthe ingredients section. 552 F.3d 9938 (9th Cir.
2008) Plaintiffs allege: (1) that #himage of readyo-serve beanssimisleading
becaus evenafta “heating and serving,” the contents of the can look morg
soup thea a bowl full of plump and hardy beans, (2) that the label is mislg
because the serving size gives the impressienctnsumer will receive 4 oz
beans per serving,ub actwally receive less than 20z, and (3) consumers

deceived because tsanardis to predominately fillcans withbeans, not water

fillers. In addtion, Plaintiffs allege that becausgeun Vista Beans are sold|i

opaque cannedontainers corsumeés deped uponthe product advertiseme
-13-
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label, and the fill of thecanto conductproduct comparisons and magerchasing
decisions

Here, pctured in the forefront of Defendants
pinto ban ca are image®f aprominentred bowl of
cooked pinto beans surrourded by a few green
leaves, white oniors cut in haf or quartersportions
of asliced tomatpanda coupé garlic cloveson a bed
of dehydratedpinto bears. These food images are

displayedin the center of the can underwaving
banner that read“Pinto Beans in both English and

Spanish

First, the Court recognizes thahagescan reasonaplbe interpretedo have
various meaning SeeWysong Cau. v. APN, Inc, 266 F. Supp. 3d 10583068
(E.D. Mich. 2017)aff'd sub nomWysongCarp. v. APN, Inc(17-1975), 889 F.3(
267 (6th Cir. 2018)discussing the use giraphicsfor identfication purposes, |
indicake a flavor, a primaryingredient or any ingredient containedwithin the
product); see alsdRed v. Kraft Foods, IncNo. CV 10-1028GW AGRX, 2012
WL 5504011, at 3 (C.D. Cal. Oct. 25, 201dinding thata reasonable consiam
would not bedeceivedinto believinga box of crackers is primarilgonposed o
freshvegetablesimply becaus¢here arepicturesof vegetablen the pakage).
In WysongCorp. v. APN, Irc., a LanhamAct casein which the saméreasonabl
consumet test was appliedthe district court found thathe images of premiur

cuts d meat o dog food padkaging standing alonewould not mislead a

reasombleconsunerto believe thathe dogfood containedthose particlar cuts of

meat. 266 F. Supp. 3d 1058The court reasoed that‘the catext and character
the image- its siz, its color, its placement on the package, gwrounding

images, its relationship tthe products nameand other descripve text on thg

A4

|-

o

—

of

\U

package, etc: determines which of these messages (or others) the image ma
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plausibly be understood to conveWysong Cop., 266 F. Supp. 3dt 1071 Both
Federal and stataw emghasize thamportane of context “judicial experiencé
ard “common senselgbal, 556 U.S. at 67%ernod Ricard USA,LC v. Bacard
U.S.A., Inc 65 F.3d 241, 253 (3d Cir. 2031Kink v. Time Waner Cable 714
F.3d 739, 742 (2d Cir. 2013)see alsdCal. Health & Safety Gie 8 110290(“In
deemining whether hie labeling oradvertisement of a foodis misleading, a
representations mador suggestedby statementword, design, devicesound, of
any combination ofhese, shall be taken ind@count’)

The Court now turns to the possi@ intergetatims or messags
communicated as @sultof the imagedisplayedon Defen@nt's Sun Vista pint
beansFirst, the possibilitythat anyconsumemould interpret themage of bean
to indicate a flavor would be unreasonabbnd defy commomxperienceThe
general publicis likely to interpré the imageof cooked beanss either (1)
identifying the type of beanbeing sold or (2) depictingthe cans contents. The
dehydrated beans the backgrouncndthe placement othe bavl of hydratec
beans in thdorefront, supportthe later. More sq when comparinghe image o
this produt with Defendants other bean pduct - pinto beans withjalapenos-
which show choppel jalapenossprinded throughoutthe bowl of beansthe
messagelikely conveyedto consumes is that the imageindicatesthe cans
contents Defendant, however,describeghe imageas“a picture of beans as th
are suggested for servifigWhile this interpretation seems reasonable, i$
contrary tothe detailed informatia dfered within thenutrition fact panelwhich
indicates the pmary ingredientis water For this “suggesion” to be acceptes
consumersnustdrainmore than lalf of the cafs contents- leavingthe consume
with eithera smaller serving sizer significanty lessservingsthanrepresented

Unlike other packagedood productssuch asfruit snacks,Williams 552
F.3d at 99, vegetal® crackersRed WL 5504011, at *3juice drinks, POM

Wonderful LLC vCocaCola Co.,573 U.S. 102, 16809 (2014) and ag food
-15-
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Wysong Cap., 266 F. Supp. 3d at 10/7beansare not made umf varioug
heterogenoushgredients Pinto beans are sold hydrated, dehydratedigedefor at
times with added vegetablesA consumer couldeaonably bekve that a cal
labeled“pinto keans’ with no addtional desciptor, is primarily filled with just
that -pinto beans.Despie no expressmisrepresentatigran advertisement make
misleading due to omissionsor “because advertis@ants are composed
purposefully printedn such[a] way as to mislead Lavie, 105 Cal. App. 4th 49¢
509(2003)

In addition,Plaintiffs allegethatthe net veight, serving size, and number
servings perontainerare deceiving therebymisleadng the caisumerto believe
beans ee thepredominaningredent. Plaintiffs claim thatconrsumers are mied
because the information does not truthfully or accurately reflecamount o
pinto beans within the canThe SAC further alleges thatPlaintiffs and othe
putative class members reasonabklievael that the serving sizeon the can
reflected the amont of “pinto bean’s per serving Plaintiffs provide the following
example:

According to the Nutrition Facts sectifor a 29 oz. can dbun Vista whols
pinto beans, the product contaijssc] “about 6servirgs.” Pursuant to th
label, aserving is defined as one half cup, or 4 @ath this information g
reasonable conswen can deduce that a 29 oz. can of Sun Vigtans
contains approximately 3 full capor 24 oz., of pinto beans, and ak
0.625 cupsor 5 oz, of wate[;] [r]resulting in a containerthat is mostly
filled with beans... a serving size abnehalf cup, or4 o0z., should contain
approximately 4 oz. of pinto beans and 0.83 oz. of water

Instead,after investigationPlaintiffs allege tlat a 29 @. can of Sun Vista ipto
beans containsaboutl.6 cups, or 13 oz., efhole pinto beans and about 2 cups

16 oz, of water.

Amount in 29 oz. Can According to Label Actual Amount in 29 oz. Can

24 0z. (3 cups) of pinto beans and 13 oz. (1.6 cups) of pinto beans and

5 0z. (.0625 cups) of water 16 oz. (2 cups) of water

-16-
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Plaintiffs chart however,jgnores the fact thavateris listed as thdirst, and
thereforemost pedominan ingredient See 21CFR §101.4(a)(1). Although not
disputed,Plaintiffs argue thathe FDA requirement thatood manufacturedist
ingredients in order giredominance is natformation commorny} known amonst
reasonableonsumersWhetheror na theordinary mindis well versedwith FDA
regulatiors, the reasonable consumer is awtdnr@ each serving is composedadif
ingredients including water pinto beans, saltsugar calcium, etc It is not
plausible thata reasonable osuner would beliee the ente 40z seving
consisted of only one ingreeht However,based upon commoaxperienceone
serving ofcookedreadyto serve“pinto beas,” typically does not have the sa
consistency asoup, despitepossibly being in gravylike sawce If the serving
size multiplied bythe nunier d servings is an amountelativelyclose to the cds
capacity, a consumer may reasonabblieve that the can isfilled nearly tg
capacitywith the ingredienadvertised andeflectedin the name othat product—
eg. potato chips tuna fid, dill pickles beansgtc

Defendant argues thatonsumers shuld look to the ingredient list
determinethe cans contents Although this argumentholds some meritmost
shoppers digest the information on the back after seeing gty jprcture on the

front. Although thedisgay panel isviewed first, “all representations made

suggested are considered in determining whethBefendant’s packaging is$

misleading Cal. Health & Safety Cod®& 110290 Indeed,thereasonableonsume
takessome tine todigestthe informationoffered withinthe various seatins of he
products label including the nutrition facts, ingredients list, serving sizedcan
size Consumers ofterreview the ingredient®r hedth reasons, such as to av
unhealthy additives or potentially deadly allergens Less oftendo consumer
analyze which ingredient is mogiredominant- especiallyif it appearsobvious
from the nameof the praluctor thelabel sdisplay panel The Court agges thata

product labelcan [still] be msleading even if thealleged misrepresenteon is
-17-
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correctedi] n the ingredient list. Ham v. Hain Celestial Grp., Inc70 F. Supp. 3d

1188, 1194 (N.D. Cal. 2014giting e.g, Williams, 552 F.3d at 939 A label may
trick or deceive cosumers even if icomplieswith FDA regulations SeePOM
Wonderful LLC v. Coc&ola Co., 573 U.S. 102, 11¢2014) (amalyzing the

interplay betweenfederal unfair competition law (The Lanham Act)and the

FDCA). Construing the factual allegations imetlight most favorabldo Plainiffs,
the Courtfinds Plaintiffs havesufficiently allegedthat a significant portio of the
consuming public, amg reasonablygould bemisled Lavie, 105 Cal. App. 4tlat
508, due toDeferdants Sun Vista Pinto Bearlabel having the “capacity
likelihood or tendency to deceive or confuse the publieoni v. State Bar39
Cal.3d 609, 626 (1985).

2. Rule 9b): Partcularity of the Allegations

Rule 9(b)requiresfraud claimsto consist ofspecific factuakllegationsthat
indicae why allegedly faudulentstatements are false or misleadilmgre Glenfed
Inc. Sec. Litig, 42 F.3d 1541, 1548 (9th Cir. 1994n(bang, superseded L
statute on other grounds as statedRkonconi v. Larkin253 F.3d 423, 429 n.6 (¢
Cir. 200) (“The plaintiff must set forthwhat is false omisleadng about i
statement, and why it is false.Defendant moves to dismiss the SAC ohe
ground that it dog not satisfy the particularity reqguemens of Rule 9(b).
Defendant argues that Plaintiffsdve faled to identify ary untrue statement g
indicate how or whythe labelis purportedly false or misleadingpnsideringthe
accuray of the informationcontaned on thenutrition facts panelACC highlights
that (1) it “truthfully list[s] water asthe first ingredient on th label and (2)
Plaintiffs admit water is expected in a can of rehydrated beans.

Plantiffs allege tha Defendnts packaging is misleing becausethe
image on the labaloes noticcurately depict what the consumer can expect tq

in the containerPlaintiffs allegethat theyreviewedthe label when making the

purchasingdecisions and believed that they were purchasing a producivéisa

-18-
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predominatelyfilled with bears. In addition Plaintiffs dlege that the opaque

contairers“force consumerstrely on the industry standatd thatcans of whols
pinto bans arepredominantlyfilled with pinto beans. Having decined judicial

notice of selectivehandpicked search redts within the BFPD, the Murt has n(

factsby which todetermne, nor have the partiesstablished an industry sindard|

However, as examined abovine imagedisplayed on Defen@nts pinto bea
packagingcan reasonably benterpreted by consumers apicting the can]
contents as opposed tmdicating a flavor o meely identfying the type of bean
Whether before oafter following the “Heatand Srveé directionson the can
Plaintiffs allege the contents appear nothiikg the imagein the advertisemen
Specifically, Plaintiffs allege thaafter viewing theproducts packaging, thy
believed the can aspredominantlfilled with beans not water ad that the imge
“failed to accurately reflect the bean to water ratidccordingly, Plaintiffs have
sufficiently pleachowthe packagings misleadng or deceptig.

3.Rule 12(bj1): Standng for Products Not Purchased

A Plaintiff may havestandingto assert claims for unnamed class mem

based on productsiot purchasg# so long as the products and alle
misrepresentations are substantially simieeMiller v. Ghirardelli Chocahite
Co, 912 F. Supp2d 861, 869 (N.D. Cal. 2012). In cases where the unpurc
product and the purchased product are dissimilar or require an “individy
factual inquiry,” the claims will be dismissed. S&stiana v. Dreyer'sGrand Icg
Cream, Inc, No. C-11-2910 EMC, 2012 WL 2990766, at *11 (N.Dal. dly 20,
2012). Once a courtis satisfied that Plaintiffs have alleged unifg
misrepresentations across product lines, the question of standing should b
context of a motn for class certifigtion under Rule 23,ather than a motion

dismiss or sike.® Brown v. Hain Celestial Grp., Inc913 F. Supp. 2d 881, 8

6 Standing is a jurisdictional issue raised qitinea 12(b)(1) motion or miun for class certification. Se=g.,
Cardenas v. NBTY, Inc870 F.Supp.2d 984, 9923 (E.D.Cal.2012) (analyzing “solely under Rule 23" whethe
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(N.D. Cal. 2012). This requires the Court to consider whether #nersbstantia
similarities in the aacgsed products and wther there are gmilar
misrepresentations across product lingsler, 912 F. Supp2d at 869.

Plaintiffs allege that they purchased multiple cahSun Vista pito bean:

UJ

in different sizes, including but not limited to ap&ck ofl5 oz. cas and a 29 og.

N

can Plaintiffs further plead that they inspected the labels of all can sizes|

regardless of size, thews: (1) list water as the first ingredient, (2) include more

water than beans, (3hclude similar servingsize informaton, (4) include the

languge “Heat And Servg (5) are sold in opaque contarse and (6) depict |a

bowl of full and hardy pinto beans, with a glimmer of shine and little to no water.

Plaintiffs also allege that the “same similar discrepacies are foundin all the

can sizesDefendantcontends Plaintiffs did not view the contenfshe alternatq

sizedcansnot purchasg andthus cannot plead that the contents are substantially

similar to the cassizes that they did purabe SAC 11 7(b)8(b), 2022, 5Q Opp.
1114:1915:5

The Court need only bésatisfied that Plaintiffs havalleged uniform
misrepresntations’ SeeBrown 913 F. Supp. 2dt 891 The factual allegations
regardingthe amout of water versusbeans the image on the display panethe

—

cans fill and design and theserving sizeinformation providedare commol
amongall can sizesndare asubstantiapart of Plaintif§’ case At this stage of the
proceedings, e Court finds Plaintiffs have alleged substantially similar
misrepresent&ns for eachcan sizebasedon informationand belef, Miller, 912
F. Supp.2d at 869and theefore DENIES Defendarits motion to dismisgor lack

of standing.

plaintiff may asset claims onbehalf of purchasers gfoducts she did not pthiase)forcellati v. Hylands, Inc.,
876 F.Supp.2d 1155, 1161 (C.D.Cal.2012) (denying deferidaotfon to dismiss because the “argument is better
taken under the lens ofgdicality or adequacyf represerdtion, rather than staimy”).
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4. Rule 2 (b)(6):Sufficieng of the Allegdions
Defendantcontend that Plaintiffs fail to allege sufficient faalallegation:

for relief under he UCL, FAL, andCLRA. As disussed abovegny advertising
scheme involving false, unfair, misleading or deceptive advertisingood
products equally violateshe UCL, FAL and the Sherman Foodrug and
Cosmetic LawComm. On Children's Televisiomé. v. Gen. Foods Corp35 Cal
3d 197, 211 (198). To state dalse advertisinglaim, it is necessary only to shc
that the genergbublic is likely to be deceivedd. The Court, having faud the
alleged factsufficient to support a plausible infemce that the cllangedlabd is

likely to deceivethe reasonableconsumer finds that Plaintiffs’ allegationsare

sufficientto supporta claimunder the~AL, as well as thenlavful andfraudulent

prongs of the UCL.Id.
a. UCL Claim: Unfair Prong

The urair prongof the UCL requres aseparateanalysis SeeHodsdon V.

Mars, Inc, 891 F.3d 857, 865 (9th Cir. 201@)iscussig the definition of‘unfair’
as it relates teonduct agaitsconsumersnd the evolutionof Cdifornia case lavy.
California cours in consumer actims have usedthree different tests (1) the
bdancing test set forth i®.Bay Chevrolet v. General Motors Acceptance C(
72 Cal. App. 4th 861, 886 (1999R) the tethering tesset forth in CelTech
Commans, Inc. v. L.A. Cellular Tel. Cpo20 Cal.4th163, 83(1999) and (3) the
threepronged test set forth in tlieederal Trade Commissidkct. But seelLozang
v. AT & T Wireless Servs., In&04 F.3d 718, 736 (9th Cir. 20Q{finhding theFTC
testinappropriatein anticonsumer ligation)’ Plaintiffs assert thatheir claims

meet all three however pursuanto Lozanq the Court focuses only on the parti

”In Lozangq the Ninth Circuitmentionedhe California Supreme Cotstreferenceo section5 of the FTCA as a
source of “guidance But highlighted that theliscussiorrevolvedaround antcompetitve conduct, rathethan anti-
consumer conduendtherforefound the FTC test inapprapte.
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argumentgegardingthe balancingestunder SouthBay and the tethering teset
forth in CelTech

Under the balancing test

[C]ourtsmust examie the practice impact onits alleged victim, balanced

against the reasons, justifications and motives of the alleged wrongul

short, this balncing test must weigh “the utilityf the defendans conduct

against the gravity of the harm to the alleged vicfimternalcitationsand
quotationsomitted).
Davis v. HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A91 F.3d 1152, 1169 (9th Cir. 20(&dng S.
Bay Chevrolet72 Cal. App. # at 861.)

Plaintiffs contendthat any value gained from selling desstharnhalf-full
product to unsuspecting comsners is outweighed by the hargonsumer
experience fromunknowingly purchasing @roduct less than hatll. Plaintiffs
claim the practice is unjusiecauseonsumers are not receig the benefit of the
bargainand are beingnisledinto purdasing gproduct they otherwiseould not
have purbased.

Although no reason gustification for the challengedconduct is prowded,
Defendant claims that food manufaurerswould be“unnecesarily stifled from
displaying their product on thiabel’ The Courtfinds Defendans argument
unpersuasive Countless food manufactures haweiccessfully displayed an
marketed their produ withoutconsumeiconfusionor a likelihood of deception It
is only thoselabels which ardalse orlikely to deceivewhich thelaw prohibits.
Leoni v. State Bar39 Cal.3d 609, 626 9B5). The Court finds tat any utity
derived fromDefendant practce aml desire to diplay a image of a “suggeste
serving” of beans that omitsor abateshe predommantingredient is outweighe

by the alleged negativempacton Plaintiffs and other putative class membéise

Courtthereforefinds Plaintiffs allegations are sufficient to statelaim under the

unfair prong othe UCL applying the balancing test
Underthe tethering test'unfair meansconduct that threatens amcipient
violation of an antitrust lavor violates the policy or spi of one of those law
-22.

3:16cv-02792JAH-BLM

oer

92}

|®N

) ==

|1 =4

S




© 00 N O o A W DN B

N NN RN N NDNNNRRRR R R R R B
W ~N O O N W N kB O © 0o ~N O 00 h 0 N =B O

because its effects are comparable to or the same edation of the law..”
Davis, 691 F.3dat 11®-70. This test require the allegedunfair practicebe tied tq
a “legidatively declaed” policy. Lozanqg 504 F.3dat 736, see alsdHodsdon 891
F.3d at 866. (explainingthat California courtsrequire a clos rexus between th
challenged act and the legislative pojicy

Maintiffs allegethat Defendnt s business practices avafair becauséhey

violate the public policy of 15 U.S.C. § 1451, whicbutlinesthe congression

intent ofthe Fair Packaging and Lalng Progam.15 U.S.C Ch.39 15 U.S.C. §

1451. Plaintiffs argue that the alleged conduct viotathe spirit 6the FDCA® and
the Sherman Food, Drug, and Cosmétaw, which impose redations on the

marketing of casumer goodsto assist consumerswith obtaining accurate

information and facilitate vdue comparisons Citing the Ninth Circuif in POM
Wonderful LLC andrelying onthis Courts order dismissing the FA@Qefendan
argues thaas a matter of public policy, it is common for food/beverageymtsdq
indicate items on the principal displgyanel that are not the predomin
ingredient 679 F.3d at 117, revd on other grounds573 U.S. 02, (2014)
Although true,in certaininstancesthe FDAhas implementedegulatiors to avoid
public confusion by requiringthe nmanufactureto declare theercentageof the
named nonpredominaningredientor indicate thathe ingredienis present as
flavoring. POM Wonderful LLC573 U.S.at 10809 (citing 21 C.F.R. § 102.3
(2013). Ultimately reversing theNinth Cirauit decision the United Sates

Supreme Court held that compliance with theCADand its regulatinsdoes not

precludea daim challengimg a food label as deceptive misleadingld. It is quite
possible to comply wit FDA regulationsand stil violate te padlicy or spirit

underlying those regulationsMoreover, a violation of the FAL and fraudulent

8 The Unitel States 8preme Court recognized that tRBCA statutory regime is designed primarily to protect t
health and safety of the publiclatge.POM Wonderful LLC vCocaCola Ca, 573 U.S. 102, 18(2014)citing
FDCA, 8§ 401, 52 Stat. 1046, 21 U.S.C. § 3l highlighting that the FDAay issue certain regulations to
“promote honesty and fair dealing in the interest of consumers”).
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prongof the UCL equates to a violatioof the Sherman Food, Drug, and Cosm
Law, Gen. Foods Corp 35 Cal. 3dat 211, as well as th@olicy underlying that
law. Therefore the Courtfinds Plaintiffs’ allegationsmeet theCel-Tech tethering
test andaresufficientto state a claim under the unfair prorighee UCL.

b. CLRA Claim

The CLRA prohibits“[r]epresenting thigoods.. have.. characteriscs...
which they do not havé.. “[rlepresentng that goods.are of a partular

standard, quality, or gradef they are of anothét or “[a]dvertising goods ar

services with intent not to sell thems advertised.Cal. Civ. Code§88 1770(a)b),

@)(7), (a)(9. Defendants®rtsPlaintiffs fail to sate a claim because they do

meet the “reasonable consumer” standard. Forrdasonsstated above, this

argument fails. The SAC is suficient to state a claim for injunctive reliehd|
reditution; however it is insuffident to state a claim fatamages.

In the order granting Defendnts motion to dismisshe FAC, the Cour
found Plaintiffs hal not plead facts indicatingotice was provided to Defdant
pursuant taCal. Civ. Code§ 1782(a) Plaintiffs may not claim damages undée
CLRA without giving Defendantthe statutorily required opportunity f
settlement. Accordingly, to the extent Plairfts assetr a claim for damageghe
Court dismissedlaintiffs’ claim for damages uret the CLRA with prejudice
leaving intact the CLRA clainfor attorneys’ £es and cost&junctive relief,and
restitution.See Cattie v. WaMart Stores, Ing 504 F. Supp. 2d 939, 950 (S.D. (
2007)

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoinglT IS HEREBY ORDERED
1. Defendants Request br Judical Noticeis GRANTED in part and
DENIED in part The Court
a. DENIES the equest forjudicial notice of15 bear-productprofiles
contained in th&FPD.
-24-

3:16cv-02792JAH-BLM

etic

not

or

Cal.



© 00 N O o A W DN B

N NN RN N NDNNNRRRR R R R R B
W ~N O O N W N kB O © 0o ~N O 00 h 0 N =B O

b. GRANTStherequesfor judicial notice ofthe Department of
Healthand Human Servicesebpag entitled “Reading Food
Labels” ard

c. GRANTSjudicial notice ofthefact that theNebMD article, and
the information contained then, is publicly available.

2. Defendant’aViotion to Dismisghe SAC isGRANTED in part and
DENIED in part. Plaintiffs’ claim for damages under the CLRA
DISMISSEDwith prejudice Any request fodamages in thprayerfor
relief as a resultfoPlaintiffS CLRA claimis STRICKEN In all other
respectsDefendant s Motion toDismissis DENIED.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED: Septembr9, 2019 L}’Zm k&w@

ON. JOHN A. HOUSTON
AINITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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